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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Commissioners
Boonton Housing Authority:

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Boonton Housing Authority (the "Authority") as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the accompanying table of contents.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion"
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Authority, as of September 30, 2024, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by

the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local

Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in

accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

We were unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence for the balances related to the net pension liability, net other
post employment benefits ("OPEB") liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, pension
expense, and OPEB expense relating to the Authority's defined benefit pension and OPEB plans because the
pension and OPEB plans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 have not yet issued their audited actuarial
reports. Accordingly, the Authority's net pension liability, net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and
deferred inflows of resources are reported from the June 30, 2023 audited actuarial report amounts. Pension and
OPEB expense are recorded at its annual contribution amount. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for the balances of the net pension liability, net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, pension expense, and OPEB expense relating to the defined pension and OPEB plans
by other auditing procedures. Because the audited actuarial reports for the pension and OPEB plans have not been
issued, it is not practicable to quantify the financial effects of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey,
we:

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and required pension and other postemployment benefits information be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for the purpose of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying financial data schedule is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements and is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and financial data schedule are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and financial data schedule are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 5, 2025 on our
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Nowipodtec. & Gomiog 447

August 5, 2025
Toms River, New Jersey
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BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

As Management of the Authority, we offer readers of the Authority’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2024. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements as presented elsewhere in this Report.

A. _Financial Highlights

1.

The Authority’s liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets and
deferred outflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $984,968
(net position) as opposed to $804,511 for the prior fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority’s Proprietary Fund reported
ending Unrestricted Net Position (Deficit) of $(133,900).

The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash balance at September
30, 2024 was $881,270, representing a decrease of $1,117,963 from the prior fiscal

year.

The Authority had Total Operating Revenues of $4,464,966 and Total Operating
Expenses of $4,295,499 for the year ended September 30, 2024.

The Authority’s capital outlays for the fiscal year were $69,247.
The Authority’s Expenditures of Federal Awards amounted to $4,107,129.

The Authority’s liabilities at September 30, 2024 were $2,280,120, representing a
decrease of $48,832 from the prior fiscal year.

B. Using the Annual Report

1.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority’s financial statements. The Authority’s financial
statements and Notes to Financial Statements included in this Report were
prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to governmental entities in the
United States of America for Proprietary Fund types.



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2. Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
They consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Authority’s assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net
position. Increases or decreases in net position will serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents
information showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
unrelated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.;
depreciation and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Cash Flows presents relevant information about the Authority’s
cash receipts and cash payments during the year.

The financial statements report on the Authority’s activities. The activities are
primarily supported by HUD subsidies and grants. The Authority’s function is to
provide decent, safe and sanitary housing to low income and special needs
populations. The financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 14.

3. Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The Notes
to Financial Statements can be found in this Report after the financial statements.

4. Supplemental Information

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). The Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards can be found on page 39 of this report. The Schedule of
Required Pension Information and Schedule of Required OPEB Information is
presented for additional analysis as required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statements No. 68 and No.75, respectively.



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

C. The Authority as a Whole

The Authority’s Net Position increased during the fiscal year. The Authority’s revenues
are primarily subsidies and grants received from HUD. The Authority receives subsidies
each month based on a pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down based on
need against a pre-authorized funding level. The Authority’s revenues were sufficient to
cover all expenses during the fiscal year when excluding depreciation expense.

By far, the largest portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress). The Authority uses
these capital assets to provide housing services to tenants consequently; these assets are
not available for future spending. The unrestricted net position of the Authority is
available for future use to provide program services.

D. Budgetary Highlights

The Authority is required by New Jersey State law to adopt an annual, entity wide
operating and capital budget and submit it to the State of New Jersey Department of
Community Affairs at least ninety days prior to the start of its fiscal year.

As indicated by the excess of revenues over expenses, the Authority’s Net Position
increased during the fiscal year.

E. Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of September 30, 2024, the Authority’s net investment in capital assets was
$1,118,868. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, equipment and
construction in progress and is reduced by accumulated depreciation and debt related to
capital asset acquisitions.

Major capital assets purchased of $69,247, during the fiscal year primarily pertained to
expenditures made utilizing the Authority’s reserves. Additional information on the
Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the Financial Statements which is
included in this Report.



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

E. Significant Changes from Prior Year

Capital assets, net decreased by $22,637 as depreciation expense of $91,884 exceeded
acquisitions of $69,247 for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Restricted cash decreased from $544,731 in 2023 to $351,738 in 2024, or $192,993. The
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in section 8 housing assistance payments
reserves.

Net pension liability and net OPEB liability increased $408,409 and $656,795,
respectively, from FY2023 to FY2024, which was the result of changes in assumptions
from the State of New Jersey’s GASB 68 PERS audit and GASB 75 State Health
Benefits audit. The balances shown as of September 30, 2024 reflect the September 30,
2023 balances since the audits applicable to FY2024 were not available at the time of
audit.

Tenant services increased by $79,947, primarily as a result of an increase in tenant
service related salaries totaling $63,383.

Housing assistance payments expense increased by $162,801 as the Authority had an
increase in unit months leased during 2024.

F. Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority’s budget for the fiscal
year ending September 30, 2025:

1. The state of the economy, particularly in light of current world affairs.

2. The need for Congress to fund the war on terrorism and the possible cut-back on
HUD subsidies and grants.

3. The use of the Authority’s program reserves to fund any shortfalls rising from a

possible economic downturn and reduced subsidies and grants. The Authority’s
program reserves appear to be sufficient to cover any shortfall.

H. Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances
for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Executive Director, Housing Authority of the Town of Boonton, 125 Chestnut Street,
Boonton, NJ 07005 or call (973) 335-0846.



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1.  Summarized Financial Data

Cash and Other Assets
Capital Assets - Net
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Less: Total Liabilities
Less: Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted Net Position
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

As of
9/30/2024 9/30/2023 Variance

$ 2,113,941 § 2,031,394 82,547
1,118,868 1,141,505 (22,637)

775,524 676,352 99,172

4,008,333 3,849,251 159,082
2,280,120 2,328,952 (48,832)

743,245 715,788 27,457

984,968 804,511 180,457
1,118,868 1,141,505 (22,637)

- 290,004 {290,094)

(133,900) (627,088) 493,188

$ 984,968 % 804,511 180,457

%
Change

4.06%
-1.98%
14.66%

4.13%

-2.10%
3.84%
22.43%

-1.98%

-100.00%

-78.65%
22.43%



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1. Summarized Financial Data (continued)

Year Ended %
9/30/2024 9/30/2023 Variance Change
Revenues
Tenant Revenues $ 546,984 3 489,861 $ 57,123 11.66%
HUD Subsidies 3,859,942 4,035,273 (175,331) -4,34%
Other Revenues 58,040 145,907 (87,867) -60.22%
Total Operating Revenues 4,464,966 4,671,041 (206,075) -4.41%
Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 1,614,623 1,424,921 189,702 13.31%
Housing Assistance Payments 2,588,992 2,394,814 194,178 8.11%
Depreciation Expense 91,884 178,047 (86,163) -48.39%
Total Operating Expenses 4,295,499 3,997,782 297,717 7.45%
Operating Income 169,467 673,259 (503,792) -74.83%
Non-Operating Income
Interest on Investments 10,990 19,721 " (8,731)  -44.27%
Change in Net Position 180,457 692,980 (512,523) -73.96%
Net Position — Beginning of Year 804,511 111,531 692,980 621.33%
Net Position — End of Year $ 984,968 $ 804,511 $ 180,457 22.43%
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BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from related party
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Restricted cash
Capital assets, net
Total non-current assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S.
State of New Jersey S.H.B.P.

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$ 529,532
65,647
1,152,693
14,331
1,762,203
351,738

1.118.868
1,470,606
3.232.809

149,081
626,443

$_ 4,008,333



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 14,905
Accrued expenses 4,308
Accrued compensated absences, current 20,813
Total current liabilities 40,026
Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, non-current 187,327
Family Self-Sufficiency Program escrows 351,738
Accrued pension liability 714,049
Accrued OPEB liahility 986.980
Total non-current liabilities 2,240,094
Total liabilities 2,280,120

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S. 113,221
State of New Jersey S.H.B.P. 630,024
Total deferred inflows of resources 743,245
NET POSITION

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,118,868
Unrestricted 1 00
Total net position 084,968

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $__4.008.333

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Operating revenues:
Tenant revenue
HUD operating grants
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Administrative
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance and operations
Insurance
General
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenues:
Investment income

Net non-operating revenues
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$ 546,984
3,859,942
58.040
4.464.966
552,087
101,361
322,766
482,329
90,902
65,178
2,588,992
91.884
—4,295.499

169,467

10 0
10 0
180,457
804.511
$____084.068



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from tenants and others
Cash received from grantors
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash Flows from Non Capital Related Financing Activities:
Amounts due from related party

Net cash used in non capital related financing activities

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash to

Statement of Net Position is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$ 524,750
3,804,791
(592,061)

6

92,087

(1.152.,693)
—(1.152,603)
(1,117,963)
1,099,233
$ 881,270

$ 529,532
351,738

$ 881,270



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income $ 169,467

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 91,884
Bad debt expense 10,370

Changes in operating assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable, net (63,536)
Prepaid expenses 5,349
Deferred outflows of resources (99,172)
Accounts payable (39,974)
Accrued expenses (76,891)
Tenant security deposits (47,412)
Unearned revenue (34,847)
Accrued compensated absences 16,081
Accrued OPEB liability 75,012
Deferred inflows of resources 27,457
Other noncurrent liabilities 59.199
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 92,987

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Organization

The Boonton Housing Authority (the "Authority”) is a public body corporate and politic of the
State of New Jersey (the "State”) created by the Town of Boonton (the "Town”) under Local
Redevelopment and Housing Law (N.J.S.A 40A:12A-1,et seq) of the State. The Authority is
responsible for operating low-rent housing programs in the Town under programs administered
by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”). These programs provide
housing for eligible families under the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

The Authority is governed by a board of seven members who serve five-year terms. The
governing board is essentially autonomous but is responsible to HUD and the State of New Jersey
Department of Community Affairs. An executive director is appointed by the Authority’s Board to
manage the day-to-day operations of the Authority.

B. Basis of Accounting / Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board ("GASB") is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

The programs of the Authority are organized as separate accounting entities. Each program is
accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position (program equity),
revenues, and expenses. The individual programs account for the governmental resources
allocated to them for the purpose of carrying on specific programs in accordance with laws,
regulations, or other restrictions, including those imposed by HUD. The programs of the
Authority are combined and considered an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is used to account
for activities that are operated in a manner similar to those found in the private sector.

The Authority's enterprise fund is accounted for using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, and losses from assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place.

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as
amended ("GASB 34"). GASB 34 requires the basic financial statements to be prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and requires the
presentation of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires the Authority to include
Management's Discussion and Analysis as part of the Required Supplementary Information.

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. In
accordance with GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions
("GASB 33"), grant and subsidy revenue are recognized at the time eligible program expenditures
occur and/or the Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements.

15



NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of Accounting / Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

On January 30, 2008, HUD issued PIH Notice 2008-9 which requires that unused housing
assistance payments ("HAP") under proprietary fund reporting should be reported as restricted
net position, with the associated cash and investments also being reported as restricted. Any
unused administrative fees should be reported as unrestricted net position, with the associated
assets being reported on the financial data schedule as unrestricted.

Both administrative fee and HAP revenue continue to be recognized under the guidelines set
forth in GASB 33. Accordingly, both the time and purpose restrictions as defined by GASB 33 are
met when these funds are available and measurable, not when these funds are expended. The
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers program is no longer a cost reimbursement grant; therefore,
the Authority recognizes unspent administrative fee and HAP revenue in the reporting period as
revenue for financial statement reporting.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(9), any investment income earned up to $500 on these
funds may be retained by the Authority. Amounts in excess of $500 must be remitted annually to
the Department of Health and Human Services, Payment Management System.

C. Reporting Entity

In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14 and No. 34, the Authority’s basic financial statements include those of the
Authority and any component units. Component units are legally separate organizations whose
majority of officials are appointed by the primary government or the organization is fiscally
dependent on the primary government and there is a potential for those organizations either to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government. An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary
government if any one of the following conditions exist:

1. The primary government (Authority) is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources.

2, The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

3. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.
Based on the application of the above criteria, this report includes all programs and activities
operated by the Authority. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under these criteria in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Authority is not
included in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

D. Description of Programs

The Authority maintains its accounting records by program. A summary of the significant
programs operated by the Authority is as follows:

16



NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Description of Programs (continued)

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
The Authority administers a program of rental assistance payments to private owners on behalf of

eligible low-income families under Section 8 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1974.
The program provides payments covering the difference between the maximum rental on a
dwelling unit, as approved by HUD, and the amount of rent contribution by a participating
family.

Family Self-Sufficiency under Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services ("FSS Program")
The FSS program enables families assisted through the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
program to increase their earned income and reduce their dependency on social services and
rental subsidies. Under the FSS program, families living in assisted housing are provided
opportunities for education, job training counseling and other forms of social service assistance,
in order to develop the skills necessary to achieve self-sufficiency.

Business Activities
The Authority owns non-federal housing units in which revenues earned from these activities are
recorded in the Business Activities fund.

E. Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the allowance
for doubtful accounts, accrued expenses and other liabilities, depreciable lives of properties and
equipment and contingencies. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Authorities are required by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14 to deposit public funds in a bank or
trust company having its place of business in the State of New Jersey and organized under the
laws of the United States, or the State of New Jersey, or the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.
N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1 provides a list of securities which may be purchased by New Jersey
Authorities.

The Authority is required to deposit funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in
1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. N.J.S.A. 17:9-42 requires governmental units to deposit public funds
only in public depositories located in New Jersey, when the funds are secured in accordance with
the act.

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United States,
Certificates of Deposit, or any other federally insured investment. HUD also requires that
deposits be fully collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization includes FDIC insurance
and the market value of securities purchased and pledged to the political subdivision. Pursuant to
HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are allowed as security for deposits.
Obligations furnished as security must be held by the Authority or with an unaffiliated bank or
trust company for the account of the Authority.
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NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with state and HUD
requirements. For the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash
balances and highly liquid investments with a maturity of nine months or less at time of purchase.

G. Accounts Receivable, Net

The Authority recognizes a receivable from HUD and other governmental agencies for amounts
earned and billed but not received and for amounts unbilled, but earned as of year end.

H. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Authority periodically reviews all accounts receivable to determine the amount, if any, that
may be uncollectable. If it is determined that an account or accounts may be uncollectable, the
Authority prepares an analysis of such accounts and records an appropriate allowance against
such amounts.

I. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations.

J. Capital Assets, Net

Capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged directly to
expense as they are incurred. Expenditures determined to represent additions or betterments are
capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation is eliminated from the accounts and any related gain or loss is reflected in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the following asset groups:

¢ Buildings 40 Years
¢ Site Improvements 15 Years
¢ Dwelling Equipment 3-7 Years

The Authority has established a capitalization threshold of $1,000.
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NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
K. Impairment of Long Lived Assets

The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting long-lived assets to
determine whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If the Authority determines that a
capital asset is impaired, and that the impairment is significant and other-than-temporary, then
an impairment loss will be recorded in the Authority's financial statements. During the year
ended September 30, 2024, there were no impairment losses incurred.

L. Inter-program Receivables and Payables

Inter-program receivables and payables are current, and are the result of the use of the Business
Activities fund as the common paymaster for shared costs of the Authority. Cash settlements are
made periodically, and all inter-program balances net to zero. In accordance with GASB 34, inter-
program receivables and payables are eliminated for financial statement purposes.

M. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The Authority recognizes a liability for goods and services received but not paid for as of year-
end. It also recognizes a liability for wages and fringe benefits related to services performed at
year-end but not yet paid to employees or taxing authorities.

N. Unearned Revenue

The Authority's unearned revenue primarily consist of the prepayment of rent by residents and
the receipt of HUD and other grant funding applicable to future periods prior to incurring the
corresponding expense.

0. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid leave time is accrued at the estimated amounts of future benefits
attributable to services already rendered. Employees may be compensated for accrued vacation
leave in the event of retirement or termination of service. Employees may be compensated for
sick leave at retirement at the rate of three days for every five days accumulated, payable at the
salary rate earned at the time of separation. Employees may only accumulate and carry over to
the following year the prior year’s unused vacation. The Authority’s sick leave policy allows
employees to carry over unused sick leave without penalty.

P. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Public Employees Retirement System ("PERS") and additions to/deductions
from PERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.
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NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Q. Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPEB")

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the net OPEB, and OPEB expense, and information about the
fiduciary net position of the State Health Benefits Plan ("SHBP") and additions to/deductions
from SHBP's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by SHBP. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms.

R. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources until that time.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources until that time,

S. Net Position Classifications

Net position is classified in three components:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of resources including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,

notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets.

Restricted net position - Consists of resources with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted” or
"net investment in capital assets."

T. Use of Restricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a particular restricted use, it is
the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.
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NOTE 1.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
U. Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines its operating revenues as income derived from charges to residents and
others for services provided as well as government subsidies and grants used for operating
purposes. The Authority receives annual operating subsidies from HUD, subject to limitations
prescribed by HUD. Operating subsidies from HUD are recorded when received and are
accounted for as revenue. Operating expenses are costs incurred in the operation of its program
activities to provide services to residents and others. The Authority classifies all other revenues
and expenses as non-operating,.

V. Taxes

The Authority is a unit of local government under the State of New Jersey law and is exempt from
real estate, sales and income taxes by both the federal and state governments. However, the
Authority will pay a payment in lieu of taxes to cover municipal services provided by the local
government for certain properties owned throughout the Town.

W. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority adopts annual, appropriated operating budgets for all its programs receiving
federal expenditure awards, which are used as a management tool throughout the accounting
cycle. All budgets are prepared on a HUD basis, which differs with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. All appropriations lapse at HUD's program year end or
at the end of grant periods.

X. Economic Dependency

The Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program is economically dependent on receiving
subsidies from HUD. The program operates at a loss prior to receiving such subsidies.

Y. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Authority is a member of the New Jersey Public Housing Authorities Joint Insurance Fund
(u JIF").

The JIF is both an insured and self-administered group of housing authorities established for the
purpose of insuring against property damage, general liability, motor vehicles and equipment
liability and workmen's compensation. The JIF will be self-sustaining through member
premiums. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts
have not exceeded insurance coverage for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Z. Regulated Leases

The Authority is a lessor of residential dwelling units under regulated leases as defined by GASB
87 and as such recognizes rental revenue in accordance with the terms of the lease contract. The
leases which are twelve months in length are regulated by HUD as to rent, unit size, household
composition and tenant income. For the year ended September 30, 2024, rental revenue earned
by the primary government under the aforementioned leases totaled $546,984.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of September 30, 2024, the Authority had funds on deposit in checking, savings, and
certificate of deposit accounts. The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted cash) was $881,270, and the bank balances approximated $905,087.

Cash Category Amount
Unrestricted $ 529,532
Restricted 351,738
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 881,270

Of the bank balances, $251,909 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining
$653,178 was collateralized by GUDPA as of September 30, 2024.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of
September 30, 2024, the Authority’s bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following as of September 30, 2024:

Description Amount
Accounts receivable - HUD $ 65.647

Accounts receivable - HUD

As of September 30, 2024, accounts receivable - HUD represents amounts due to the Authority
for amounts expended under the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program that have not yet
been reimbursed. Management estimates the amounts to be fully collectible and therefore no
allowance for doubtful accounts has been established.
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BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE 4. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As of September 30, 2024, restricted deposits consisted of the following:

Description Amount
Family Self Sufficiency program escrows $ 351,738

Family Self Sufficiency ("FSS") program escrows are restricted for use in the Section 8 Housing
Choice Vouchers Program by FSS program participants.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30,
2024:
September September
Description 30, 2023 Additions  Dispositions Transfers 30, 2024
Non-depreciable:
Land $__ 215055 $ - § - $ - $_ 215055
Subtotal 215,955 - = = 215,955
Depreciable:
Buildings and improvements 6,606,522 46,825 - - 6,653,347
Furniture and equipment 644,107 22,422 - - 666,529
Subtotal 7.250.629 69,247 - - 7,319,876
Less: accumulated
depreciation 6,325,079 91,884 - - 6.416.963
Net capital assets $_ 1141505  $_ (22.637) §$ - - $ 1118868

Depreciation expense for the year ended September 30, 2024 amounted to $91,884.

NOTE 6. DUE FROM RELATED PARTY

The Authority entered into a Property Leasing and Management Agreement (the "Agreement") on
June 23, 2021 with AHOM, Inc. to lease and manage the housing project and to assume the
obligations of the HAP Owner under the Project Based Voucher ("PBV") HAP contract. As of
September 30, 2024, AHOM Inc. owed the Authority $1,152,693 in relation to operating activity
performed during the year in accordance with the Agreement. Management estimates the
amounts to be fully collectible and therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts has been

established.
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NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

As of September 30, 2024, accounts payable consisted of the following;:

Description Amount
Accounts payable - HUD $ 12,629
Accounts payable - PHA projects 2,276
Total accounts payable $ 14,905

Accounts Payable - HUD
As of September 30, 2024, accounts payable - HUD consisted of amounts payable to the

Department of Housing and Urban Development for interest earned on HAP reserves in the
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program.

Accounts Payable - PHA Projects
As of September 30, 2024, accounts payable - PHA projects represents amounts due to managing

PHAs under the portability provisions of the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities as of September 30, 2024 consisted of the following;:

Amounts
September Retirements September due within
Description 30, 2023 Additions /Payments 30, 2024 one year
Accrued compensated
absences $ 192,059 $ 38,687 §$ (22,606) $ 208,140 $ 20,813
FSS Program escrows 202,539 59,199 - 351,738 -
Accrued pension liability 714,049 - - 714,049 -
Accrued OPEB liability 911,968 137,706 62,6 986.980 z
Total non-current
liabilities $_2110615 $__235592 $_(85300) $2.260907 $_20.813
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NOTE 9.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

PENSION PLAN

The information required to present the schedule of changes in net pension liability, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources was not available as of the date of this
report and accordingly, the net pension liability, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows
of resources, and pension expense / benefit related to PERS are being reported from the 2023
audited actuarial report.

A. Plan Description

The PERS is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the "Division"). For additional
information about PERS, please refer to the Division's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report,
which can be found at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

B. Benefits

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits,
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS:

1. Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55% of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age
62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60™" of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.

Early retirement benefits are available to tiers one and two before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4
before age 62 with 25 years or more of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service
credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month a member
retires prior to the age at which a member can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60
if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at
least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective
tier.
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NOTE 9.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

PENSION PLAN (continued)
C. Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by all active
members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is
contributed by the State. The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined
amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the
unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on
actual claims paid.

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on the actuarially determined rate which
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an
option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability
contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be
credited with full payment and any such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability.
The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for
the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This unfunded
liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning
with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of
return on the actuarial value of the assets.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $714,049, for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2022, and rolled
forward to June 30, 2023.

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the Authority did not recognize a pension expense /
benefit. At September 30, 2024, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 1,569 $ 43,274
Changes in Proportion 137,397 67,028
Differences between expected and actual experience 6,827 2,919
Net differences between actual and projected
earnings on pension plan investments 3.288 -
Total $ 149,081 $ 113,221

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense over the next several years as follows:

Year ending September 30: Amount
2025 $ 39,175
2026 21,866
2027 (30,556)
2028 5,468
2029
$ 35.860
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NOTE 9.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

PENSION PLAN (continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions
The collective total pension liability at the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined by

an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. This
actuarial valuation used the following assumptions.

Inflation Rate:
Price 2,75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary increases: 2.75 - 6.55%
based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-
retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy
Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality
improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial adjustments used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

F. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation
with the Directors of the Division of Investments and the Division of Pensions and Benefits, the
board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class, including the PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023, are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
US Equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.75% 9.22%
International Small Cap Equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50%
Real Assets 3.00% 8.40%
Real Estate 8.00% 8.58%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21%
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NOTE 10.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

PENSION PLAN (continued)
G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2023. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State
employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on
those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.

H. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6.00 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 1,107,135 $ 714,049 $ 1,827,204

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The information required to present the schedule of changes in net OPEB liability, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources was not available as of the date of this
report and accordingly, the net OPEB liability, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of
resources, and OPEB expense / benefit related to SHBP are being reported from the 2023 audited
actuarial report.

A. Plan Description

The SHBP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the
Division. It covers employees of local government employers that have adopted a resolution to
participate in the SHBP. For additional information about SHBP, please refer to the Division's
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, which can be found at
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

B. Benefits

SHBP provides medical and prescription drug to retirees and their covered dependents of the
employers. Under Chapter 88, local employers elect to provide benefit coverage based on the
eligibility rules and regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter
48 allows local employers to establish their own age and service eligibility for employer paid
health benefits coverage for retired employees.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)
B. Benefits (continued)

Under Chapter 48, the employer may assume the cost of postretirement medical coverage for
employees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a disability pension; or 2) retired with 25 or
more years of services credit in a State of locally administered retirement system and a period of
service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the
employer; or 3) retired and reached the age of 65 with 25 or more years of service credit in a State
or locally administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the
employer at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or 4) retired and reached age
62 with at least 15 years of service with the employer. Further, the law provides that the employer
paid obligations for retiree coverage may be determined by means of a collective negotiations
agreement.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L., 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage
who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a
percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or
more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of
coverage.

C. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At September 30, 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $986,980, for its proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of July 1, 2022, and rolled
forward to June 30, 2023.

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the Authority recognized an OPEB expense of $3,297,
which represented the annual premium due. At September 30, 2024, the Authority reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 127,851 $ 278,988
Changes in Proportion 453,078 268,032
Differences between expected and actual experience 45,514 82,841
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments - 163
Total $ 626,443 $ 630,024
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)

C. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued)

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, other than the employer
contributions noted above, will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Amount
Year ending September 30:

2025 $ (975)
2026 (977)
2027 (978)
2028 (698)
2029 (117)
Thereafter 164

$ (3,581)

D. Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. This actuarial valuation
used the following assumptions:

Salary increases:
Through 2026 2.75 to 6.55%
based on years of service

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General classification headcount weighted mortality
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-
2021 scale.

Certain actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of the
PERS experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 100% of active members are
considered to participate in the SHBP upon retirement.

E. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.65% as of June 30, 2023. This
represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the State. The source is the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the
municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the
discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)

F. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated
using the discount rate of 3.65%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(2.65%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.65%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.65%) (3.65%) (4.65%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $___1.143,238 $ 986,980 $ 861,205

G. Healthcare Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.50% and decreases to a 4.50%
long-term trend rate after nine years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO, the trend is increasing to
14.8% in fiscal year 2026 and decreased to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For HMO, the trend is
increasing to 17.4% in fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 9.50% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term
trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

H. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated
using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed above, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate.

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
Authority's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $ 838,817 $ 986,980 $_ 1.176,674
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NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

CONTINGENCIES

The Authority receives financial assistance from HUD in the form of grants and subsidies.
Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of
the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of funds for eligible
purposes. Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to financial
and compliance audits by HUD. As a result of these audits, costs previously reimbursed could be
disallowed and require payments to HUD. As of September 30, 2024, the Authority estimates that
no material liabilities will result from such audits.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the financial statement date but before the financial statements were
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the financial statement date are
recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide
evidence about conditions that existed after the financial statement date require disclosure in
the accompanying notes to the financial statements. Management evaluated the activity of the
Authority through August 5, 2025 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued)
and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the
financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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NOVOGRADAC
& COMPANY LLpPe CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

<

To the Board of Commissioners
Boonton Housing Authority:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local
Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
Boonton Housing Authority (the "Authority") which comprise the statement of net position as of September 30,
2024, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and change in net position, and cash flows for the year
then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 5, 2025.

Internal Control Quver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified.

1144 Hooper Avenue, Suite 203, Toms River, New Jersey 08753

www.novoco.com | 732.649.2800
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Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Nopuodac. & Gomaony (X

August 5, 2025
Toms River, New Jersey
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& COMPANY LLpPe CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

To the Board of Commissioners
Boonton Housing Authority:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Boonton Housing Authority's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2024. The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Our responsibilities
under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Authority’s federal
programs.

144 Hooper Avenue, Suite 203, Toms River, New Jersey 08753
www.novoco.com | 732.649.2800
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Authority’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control
over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion in expressed.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

August 5, 2025
Toms River, New Jersey
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the
federal grant activity of the Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended
September 30, 2024. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the net position,
changes in net position or cash flows of the Authority. Therefore, some amounts presented in the
Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and the
State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors' report issued:
2. Internal control over financial reporting
a. Material weakness(es) identified?
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be a material weakness?
3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements?
Federal Awards
1: Internal control over compliance:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?
b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be a material weakness?
2. Type of auditors' report on compliance
for major programs:
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?
4. Identification of major programs:
AL Number Name of Federal Program
Housing Voucher Cluster
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
5. Dollar threshold used to distingunish between
Type A and Type B Programs:
6. Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee?

40

Qualified

No

None Reported

No

No

None reported

Unmodified

No

$750,000

No



BOONTON HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

II. Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

I11. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings or questions costs relating to federal awards.

Iv. Summary of Prior Audit Findings

There were no findings in the prior year.

41



[12

"s10)1pny Juapuadapu] jo Loday 298

11oda1 s1o1pne 2t} a1ep ay}
JO Se pajIpne ueaq jou pey bzoz ‘0f 1aquiaidag papus 1eak oy 10§ uerd uoisuad oy} asnedaq a[qe[reae jou sem ueld uorsuad a1 03 Sune[e1 uoneWIO] (V)

9, 00°0T 9% OR°ST % TIGT 9% GL QT 9% OBl 9% 8901 9% vPPel 9 mw.H: % OV'IT 9 PL O1 [[o14ed sakojdua
-pa192A02 Jo a8ejuadiad
E SB SUOINJLIU0)

TIOPOY ¢ CIGGIY $ 0OcgQIiP$ ELOQDES GCGIOGE $ Q0L Got $ GOOQET ¢ Voobet § ©6L0ct$ QROECC $ [[o1ded sako[dwa
-Pa1aA0d s, ALI0YINY

= $ - $ - § - $ - § - g - $ - $ = & = $  papumnyIspun / (18AQ)

giV OV 88850 CC0'50 T8 ©0 006'LF ToLTE TPoor 05SR'Qt 06L7Q% ROz uonNqLIIuod paimbal

A[en30BIIU0D 2} 0}
UOIIB[a1 UI SUONNQLIIU0))

oot ¢ 88890 $ SS0C9 § TEQEO $ 996°Ly ¢ POLYE ¢ Sboesb ¢ 95888 ¢ 06498 ¢  SogbE ¢ UONNqLIIu0d
paxmbai Ajjenjoeniuoc)
(¥) P20z 0t ETOT 0% 2c0g 0% Te0g ‘0% 0c0c ‘0t bI0g '0% 8102 0% Z10% "0% 0T0g "0t ST0g% ‘0%

oqueidss equeydsg  sequisydeg  Isquieldsg  taquisydegs  mequieydeg  raquieldeg  Ioquieydes sequisides  Iequiaydeg

SEVHA 'TVOSTA NAL LSVT HHL 404 SNOLLAYIILLNOD ALRMOHLAV 40 ATNAAHIS

Y20z ‘o€ YAIIWALIAS AAANA YVAA FHL J40d
NOILILVIHOJANI NOISNAd aaiIn0ay
ALTHOH.LOV DONISAOH NOLNOO4d



194

"s101pny juapuadapuf jo 11oday 998

‘10daa s1oypne 9y} a3ep 9y}
Jo s pajypne usaq jou pey 2oz ‘o€ Iaquisydeg papus 1eak a3 10§ ueld uoisuad a1y asnedaq J[qefrese jou sem ue[d uorsuad 9y} 03 Sune[a1 uonRULIONU] (V)

—_ Ariqery
% - 9 €2 59 % 1029 9% ©o 0L % S5 ]9 9 0805 % 09ty 9 OT'gF 9% P OV 9 CO'L¥ uoisuad [ejo1 a3 Jo
a8ejusarad e se uopisod
19U ATetonpy ue[d
o PO FPT 94 SR'ILT % CO'IQT % PO GOt % 00661 9 O1'bIT % 0T'Tic % g80°10T % LO'OLE 9 05°0R% [[o1sed

dadodure-paraa0d
S Jo a8ejuaorad

€ se (Jasse) Aiqer
uorsuad j1au ayf] Jo aIBYS
ajeuonrodoad s Quoymy
[41e] $ "SIYGIF $§ 6cROIF$ TEO'Obt$ TGI'DSE § BOLGct $ 2 G0OO'Qoc § Poobot § 2 Lbloot$ QQOESE $ [1014ed aakojdus

-pa1sA00 s ANIoyINY

OVOVIZ § OVOVIZ § OOQVGL$ LOQGPO$ VaOGIZ $§ OVOVIZ $ OVOPIZ ¢ ©LEOL6 § O1G0ce$ GLZ 506 $ Auqqer
uoisuad 19U 31} Jo aTeys
9jeuontodoxd s Quoyny

% - 9% b¥00 0 9% 05000 9% GG00°0 9 PPO0OO 9 QLO0OO % ©r00'0 9% cb00'0 9 IV00O0 % OFP00'0  Aufiqer] uoisuad 1au aip}
jo uontodoad s AtroqIny
(V) ¥c0c 0t  TTOg 0t TT0T 0T 702 0% 0c0g ‘0% 610 "0t 8T0% "0t 10z 0 9102 '0% S1oz 0¢

Toqueldas  Joquealdeg  Jequiaydag 1squaideg  Isquualdag  Iaquisndeg Iaqudag Iaqumaydeg 1aquaides  Isquiaidag

SHVIA
TVOSTd NAL LSV HHL 04 ALI'TISVIT NOISNHd LAN dTHFHL 40 TIVHS HLVNOILI0d0Odd S.ALDNOHLNV HHL A0 A IAAAHIS

Y20z ‘0 YAGINALJAS AIANT YVAA AH.L 404
(panunuod) NOLLVIMOANI NOISNAd dFd1NOTA
ALMHMOHLAV ONISNOH NOLNOOYI



144

‘s10)Ipny juapuadapu] jo 1oday 998

"9[qe[IBAR 2I€ 1By} S1B24 9501} 10J uoneurtoyur Sunuasald s1 AIOINY oY) P[0 ST puan} IeaA OT [[1J B [IIU[] xxs

"}10daa SI0}IpNE 9Y) 9)€P Y JO SE pajIpne
u29q jou pey bzozg ‘0f 1aqueides papue 1eaf oy} 10§ ueld gHJO Y} 9sNeIA( S[qe[ier jou sem ue[d gaJO Jouq pauyap ) 03 Sune[al uoreuLIou] (V)

o 880z 9 1Zot 9 Toer 9 6ocr 9 OLLT 9% OLZZI 9 65 0c 9% ZOOT [[o14ed sado[durs-paannd
Jo @8ejuenIad e se sUONNALIIL0)

gIovor ¢ =cCIGGIy § 0cgotyr ¢§ Etoobt ¢ Q0LGet ¢ 8QOLGot ¢ G6O'gLe § ‘Vootee & [1o14ed
99Aodure-paranoo sALI0YINYy
= § - $ - $ - $ - $ - g - $ - $ (ssa0x9) AdusIoyep UoIINLIIu0))

62LTOoT 292759 ePT 0% Geg vy SV6ZS S Z A, ev6°39 S{oYA ) uonnquIuod parmbail AjLoinjeis

1]} 0} UOTIR[DI UI SUOTINLIJUC))
6zitot ¢ 29399 ¢ EbT'0S ¢ SesbS ¢ S¥6°LS ¢ SH6LS ¢ eb6'Ro ¢ GRL€9 § uonnqLIuod paimbai AfLonye)g

(V) ¥20c "0t  €%0¢ ‘0% 2206 0% Tc0g ‘0% 0%0g ‘0% B10% ‘0% 8T0¢ ‘0% Zi0g ‘0%
pquydeg moqueydes  requaydeg requidydeg sequeydes  requuerdes  aequioydeg  1equueideg

%:SUVHA TVOSTA NHL LSV'T HHL 04 SNOILLONATIINOD ALTIOHLAV 40 FINAIHOS
€202 ‘0 YHIWALJIAS AAANT AVAA HHL 404

NOILVIMOANI SLIAANTE INHFIWAOTdINA LSOd YAHLO AadIN0OTd
ALTIOHLNV DONISNN0OH NOLNOOdI



St

‘s1o)pny juspuadapuf jo 110day 998

"S[qE[IeAR S1e Jey) s1eak asoty) 10§ uoreurIojur Sunussaid st ALIOYINY oY) pa[iduod ST pual} 18a4 O ([0 € [QU[] = xxx

‘}10dsa1 S10}IpNe S} 918P 91} JO SE pajIpne
u29q jou pey Fzog ‘o€ Jaquieldeg papus 1eak ayy 10§ ueld gAJO oY} 9sNEIA] [qe[reat jou sem ue[d gHJO IYOUS] PaUYSP Y} 0 SUNL[SI UONBULIOJU] (V)

% - 9%(6Z°0) %(9€0) % 820 9% Q0T 9% 861 9% Zo1 9% TOT Apqer
dHdO 2101 211 Jo a8ejuaniad
e se uonisod 19u Areronpy ue[d

% 6L 60T 9% VLLte 9 6L°QTc 9% el’Lge 9% 1O GQL % TO6'GRT % Y 0tc 9% PT'eQe [[o14ed 9afo[dura -pa1aa02 s JO
o8ejuaotad e se Aiiqer] gaJO 12U
311 Jo axeys ayeuontodold s AjLroyny

clovoy ¢ <corSiy ¢ 6egorv ¢ EGI68t ¢ QOLGee § B§OLGet ¢ GU6OQEE ¢ TooTer [[014ed sakojdurs paiaa0o s ALI0YINY
080980 $ 080980 §$ B8o0TIO $ O0ttcor$ S¥9S00 $ GSPOG09 $ VSvSLL ¢ ZSovio $ Aiqer g4d0 19U

91 Jo areys areuonodold s Aquoyny

% - % 99000 % 95000 9% 85000 9% SPO00 9% 5000 % o¥00'0 9% QE00 0 Aqer g4d0O
18U 9y} Jo uonaodoid s Auioyny

(V) ¥e0Oc ‘0t £%0gc ‘0% Zc0g 0% Tc0gc 0% 0c0g ‘0% 6103 ‘0t |T0T 'Ot Z10c ‘0%
pquoydeg mqueides  Jequuvideg  roquueydeg  Iaquueideg pqueideg  requvideg  Iequueydag

xx:xSUVHA
TVOSId NHAL ISV HHL ¥0d ALITIAVIT 9440 LAN HIFHL 40 AIVHS ALVNOLLY0dOdd SALTMOHLAV FHL A0 AINAHTHDS

€203 ‘0 YHIWHALJIAS QAANT AVAA THL 404
(ponunuod) NOLLVINHOANI SLITANAS INFIWAOTdINEA LSOd Y¥AH.LO ATAINOTA
ALRMOHLAV ONISNOH NOLNOO™



oF *s1opne yuapuadaput jo wodar aag

£EE'BO0°FS Soy'baz'zs BRG'EZLLS as 0% 0% S92UN0IAY JO MORNO FRUAJQ PUR 51985y [B10) Q6T
VZ5'SLLS YZS'SLLS 582IN053Y 0 MOANG PALAAT 00T
B98'8LL"LS 966'CLLLS 198 0§ 08 0% ‘S]assy juaLnJ-uoN [ejoL 0681

SRIMUSA JUIAT Ul SUILLSIAY) 9L
HISEY IGO0 Ll

UBLND UDN - PIGEMEIRY SIURID L)

ang ised - jUsng UoN - 2|qensay sabeBuoy g ‘sueo 'saoN ZL1
1UeLNZ-UON - ajqeAlaaey safelpopy pue sues 'sajoN L2L

B98'8LL'LS 966'ELL'LS TL8'rs a5 0$ 0% uanepaideq peiejnunazy jo jaN "siessy [Eyded [Ej0L 091

aimangseyy) gol
ssaiboig uj vogangsuod Lol

£98'91p'98- §08'41P'95- ¥51'5§" uogepaideq pajEnwnaTy g9l

sjuswanoidu] ployeseal So1
9299518 009'8v1§ 920018 nensjurpy - Alaun ® ‘nung pol
£06'6055 £06'6058 M0 - Alsuiyoei g Juswdinb3 ‘sinywng g9l
LPE'ESS9S LYE'ESS'S sBuppng zgi
556'5128 656'S1Z8 Puel 191

LEELL'ZS BPY'OLL'LS ZEH'EVES 0s 0s 0% EasHy jualng [mol 05k
9[eS loj plaH mesIY SPL

wold ang wesboid Jay phl

SU0IUIAL| 9}9[05q0 Jo] wauemOIlY |L'EPL
seuojuany £bl

LEEPIS LEE'PLE 51355y 13410 pue sesuadxg pledeld Zpl
Aumgen waung Jo wawAed Jo) paiolisey - UL SEL
P3IOUSAY - SRS ZEL

PaISAIUN - SUAASIAL] LEL

WEBIZLS 69251 LS 1vg'598 a8 05 s SWNeagY [MAGNOQ o) S33ueMolly Jo 12N ‘S3UGRAIROIY (101 021
9]qEAIa2aY JSRUANU| PaNIIRY GZ)
- o PNe13 - SIUN037Y INAGNoQ 10) 3UEMONY |82}

MlaAoday pely gz
waung - ejqeasaay sabebuoy g ‘sueo 's3joN LZL
0§ o$ [ 1310 - SHUN03TY [RAGNOQ 1) 3IUBMOINY Z'OTH
SJUBUA | - SJUNDITY [NAGNEQ 10] 33UBMOlY |'OZL

SjUBUS | - BqBAIIIY SUN0SAY 9T
£69'ZGL'1S £69'ZSL'LE SNOBUB|IadSIY - 8|qBAIa23Y SUNOTY §ZL

WBLIBACS JIYIO - S|GEAIIIIY SIUNGSTY PZL
L¥9'59% Lv9's98 spaloid JAY0 QNH - 8|9EAa33Y SUNO3TY ZZL

spaloid YHd - 3198A229) SIUN0SSY |Z)

0421885 952'218 15'E985 0§ 05 s yseD oL 00k
SeniIqEn JuauNg Ja juswied 10) pIRISIY - 4SED GiL
sysedag Ajunaag ueus | - ysed pit

BEL'LSES BEL'LSES pojaIsay IO - YseD £IL
dojaraq pue uopez) - papL Ysed zik
ZES'6ZSE 952'218 9LL'LISS PARUGSAIUN = YseD LIk

S50y Japun

SaQIARY SIAYINOA 304D 1 ASUIDLNG-IRS Papu3lg ~un
L W3 ssausng | | Buisnod L@yl @ Apued Buinoy | 1uUauedwed Z'g L en
2land L8771
¥ZOT/0E/B0 ‘PUT JBIA [BISY npny 8jbuig/pajipny edA | UolssILANS

Arewwing jeayg asuejeg apip finug
FN ‘NOLNOOS8

(zs0rN) Awoyiny BuisnoH uojuoog



PZOZ/0E/E0 ‘PUT IBDA [BISIY

L

*saojipne yuapuadapui jo wodar aag

£EE'B00'VS SPy'PeZ'ZS BRE'ETLLS 0 0§ 0% 13N - Jinb3 pue 5221n0S3K Jo SMolY PaLIRjRq ‘SaRIIGRN] IO L 009
895'v868 SYY'reZ'zs LLV'BRT LS s 08 ] Uopisod / 5195 19N - b3 [B10L €45
006'EELS- GPP'0LL'LS GPE'POC LS s s 0% ualisod 13N papigsalun pZis
UonISod JaN PRSI ¥ LIS
A9B'BLL' LS 966°ELL'LS 7/8'vs S}assy eydeD Ul usugsasyg 13N §'605
SYZ'ERLS SYTERLS 532IN0SIY Jo MOYU| PaL3jRa 0O0Y
0Z4'08Z'Z8 05 0ZL'09Z'Z$ [ s 0% sanyigen ||l gog
PE0'0PZ'TS 0% ¥60'0FZ'TS 05 s 0% saqiqen) juaung-us |elo L 05¢
6Z0'10L'1S BZ0'LOL'LS LH SIQIIGEN] G340 PUE UOJSUIY PANIITY [GE
saniliqer] § gSvA 85¢
waung uoy - Aljiqer] ueo 55¢
1281815 Lze'Lels JUBUND UON - S3IUISqY PajEsUIdUCD PANUATY F5E
BEL'LSES BEL'ISES 11O - SINIIGEr] JUBLIN3-UBN E£5E
sBupanog Bugesadg - Jusund jo jay 19ag wia-buoq Zoe
enuanay eBeByoy/siasfoly eydes - jusund jo JaN qag wierbuo L5
9Z0'0pS 0% Zo'ors 08 Qs 0s seniiqen] juaLn) [0 OLE
uaLng - Appiqer ueo gy
0] ang -weiboid iy Lye
19410 - SARIGET] PaNITY OYE
Sapliqer] juaLnd YO Sve
sbumoliog Bugesedp - jgeq wie)-BuoT jo uagiod JUsLND FrE
anuarsy ebebuoyyssioelold (elideD - jqeq wusp-Buo jo uogiod JUsLNT £FE
0s s enusnsy pewEaLn Zye
sisodaq Aundeg Jueua) |y
UMLWAADS 1O - #|qeiEd SjUNOITY EEE
8LT'Ts 94228 sjoefoid WHd - 9jqefed junooay Zeg
6Z8'Z18 GZ'TIS suweiiold YHd ANH - sjqeied sunoasy g
ajqeled jsaseju) panioay 52
Aypqen AsusbBuguog panay yZe
£18'0Z8 £18°0Z8 uagiog Jueung - sasuasqy pejesuaduios panooy ZZg
80E'FS B0E'PS sjgehed saxe | oikedreben parusay 1Zg
enQ ised sheq p5< ajqeded sunoasy gig
sAeQ 06 => 3|qeded uUnodzy Zic
WERISAQ Yueg LIE

SS0Y Japun

LT nn3 n““wﬂwwq. nmu%wob ...Hnnw M.::.hcmﬂwhﬂm wauaduog zg § [P
amand Lig'vl

Aewwing jaays sourjeg apim Anug

N 'NOLNOOS

(z50rN) Awoyiny Buisnop uojucog

1PNy sibuis/palpny :adk | uoissiwagns



#20Z/0E/60 ‘PU3 JeaA [easly

gb

LOE'LOLE 0s 5L6'88 0s 98E°Z6S 08 S0IBG UBUIL B0 L 00SZE
56'85 5.6'85 13410 ~ S92 JURUR | 0DVZE
S0Lehs S0L'E1S SPOIAIIS JUBLA | - suognquue] Jyausg sako|dw Q0EZ6
S50 UonB30|3Y Q0ZZ6
199845 189828 S3VEES - SINIIS JURUR L 0DIZ6
o3 juswaBeuey Jassy 000Z6
£80Z55S 03 £99'0425 +29'1928 0§ 0s a8 sAReqsiuwpy - Sugesadg [elo L 000LE
13410 00616
PEAYIIAD PABICINY OLBLE
95¢'28 109°'0% 551°18 19neil 00816
LIVLIE LELDLS 05P'ZS @suadxg [eBa7 0DLLE
950'8ELS BEB'SLS L1298 sesuadig 30 00346
PrLE0LS LBL'PYS 256'958 W 0 Waueg A3 00516
Bugasep pue Buispizapy 00VLE
a4 Budesa-joog QLELG
a4 uawabeuely Q0ELE
or0'sis 06885 050'95 se94 Buglpry 00Z1L6
PLE'DLZS 610'0Z1S 568'051§ SBUE[ES AREASIURUPY 00LLG
956'GLY'PS LZV'90L° 18- 000'L49'LS 169'8LB'ES 98¢'268 os os anuaAvy [ejo) 00D0L
Paaisay - BWEdU| SN 00DZL
51355y [eydeD jo sfE5 L0 5507 40 UIED 0DOLL
996'55S 68B'LLS L60'8ES BNUIASY JAIO 00SLL
#5028 vS0'Z8 Aianodey prely goviL
5955y Jo 3[eS Jo 150D QLELL
B[ES 1o} PI3H S1asSY jo UCISOdS|] Woy SP3ATCI Q0ELL
wosuy jsesaly sbeBlow 00Z1L
066'0L% 066'04S PRIDLLSIIUN - SO JUILLSIAY 0DLLL
SWEID WAWWRANS J3UIC 0080L
0§ 08 anusney 234 [E10L 00L0L
5334 1200 05204
294 9IRS QUM JUOLY OPLOL
as4 Buideay| %008 0E£L0L
4 Juswabeuepy 19ssy 0702
204 juswebeuey 04202
HUes9 ended 01802
IrE'e5EES 955'29L'ES 9BE'E6S suein bugesado YHd ONH 00902
¥86'9P5S 12190118 LIL'ESa'LE 0§ 0s 08 0§ anuaASY JUEUA | B0} 0050L
130 - anuaAay JueUa | 00F0L
¥86'975S 2Z1'501'15+ LILESS'LS SNUIATY [RUaY JURUI L 9N O0EOL
sS04
R ] I +tyonil R e Wi O RO
oNand L18'F1

Aewwng ssuadxy pue anuaney apiw Ainugz
I'N ‘NOLNOOH

(zsorN) Auoyiny BuisnoH uojuoog

‘s1oypne Juapuadaput jo Jodar aag

1pny ajbuigpalpny adk | uoissiwgng



¥ZOT/0E/60 'PUT Jea) [Bas14

6t

£Z9'PI9'LS 3 LBL'E0Z'LS oYr'aIES 9RE'Z6S 0% 05 sasuady3 Bugesado 2101 00896
0§ 0§ s 0% 08 0§ 0§ 150D Uogezpiowy pue esuadcs 131l (€191 0096
1500 aNSS| PUOE JO UOREZIIOWY D£L06
(w33 | 6uo pue Loys) ajqeed seloN uojsassiy 0ZL96
elqefed (spuog Ja) aBeBuapy o 1sai0u) 01206
841'585 08 6YY'GES 6ZL'STS os 0§ 05 sasuadig [eIUeD) MWD [M0) DOOSS
ﬂﬂcuBnN BIURIDAGS D0BOG
140 -193p Ped 00996
safieBuo - 199p ped 00596
0LE'018 0LE'0LS Y JUeU | -193P PR DOPSE
2zv'zes zZy'ezs S9XE | Jo naf] Ul sjuswhed ODE9E
909'2Z8 909'2Z8 $32U3sqy paesuaducD DIZ96
08L'68 £89'98 €21'ES sasuadi] [BJ9UID JIYO 0DZ96
Z06'065 ['H 608'628 EBO'ILS os H s SWNkIBI SoUBINSUY [R10 | ODLOG
93URINsY| JARO I 0¥ 196
SPO'LES Z56'61$ £60'L LS UogEsUSALOD SUIUNION OEL9E
756’615 Z56'6L5 asueinsul ANigen 0Z19s
506'6ES 506'6ES @aueinsy Ausdosd 01196
0§ 08 os of [H o8 0§ S3JANIGG BATIII0I [EI0L 000SE
S83INIIG 3AGD301d - L Wouag du3 gosse
Byo - sIowues aAqIRN0Id QDESE
S0 PEAUOT IO - SIS IANIADIY 00256
10qeT - S3IAIG 9ANIRN0I 00LSE
62€'zars 0§ 8ZE'78YS 0§ [ [H 0§ I3UBUSIURIA €101 000FE
SOE'LbS SOE'1PS ABUiRIQ - SUSENGIAUDY Wausg 005v6
9.L2'0928 8.£'09Z% os SPRQUED suogesadQ pue saueuaE ABUIRIO 00EYE
B66'29% 988'Z9% 130 pue sjeueie)y - suagesedp pue esusuTUER ABUIPIO 00ZH6
WTLLLS WTILIS Joqe - suagesadp pue sAUBLAUE ARUPIC 00LYE
9927268 o8 9917268 0§ 05 05 sanuan [EICL 000EG
asuadi3 SN SUC 00BEE
995'04§ 935015 SANIBN - SUORNQUIUOD ysuag askojdul QOLEE
120'9zs 120928 1emas 009€6
000'6Z% 000'6ZS 40927 005€6
1an4 goves
Sv8'001S SPR'00LS SED 006E6
0.£°298 0LE'Z8S AP 00268
F98'ELS ¥98'ELS 19EM DOLEE
ssoH
T T ooty Woleorcicl B MO
2and L48°F4

Aewwng asuadx3 pue anuaaay apip Ainug
N ‘NOLNOOg

(zgorn) Aoyiny Buisnoy uojucog

“s1oppne Juspuadaput jo podaz sag

¥pNY ejbuIS/PelpnYy (edA ) ucisswgng



oS ‘sIoyipne Juapuadaput Jo wodal 335

552 o 508 0681 D 0 PasSEaT SO JUN JO JAGUNN 01Z11
v89E o eg 9622 0 ] 3|qRI[EAY SYIUOW HUN 0641
o s Ajinb3 suewded sauejsissy Busnod oaLLL
LIV'66T'15" LIFEBT IS Anb3 334 3AERSULUPY DLLLI

YO - siuneagy [nygno( Joj @auemolly ul sabueys ooLLL
sjuay Bunpemg - slunoaay INJgna(] Joj S3uUBMONS uisabueyd psOLL
Angen) siyauag soueiarag il | [e1adg Ul sabueyd 08014
Ajpgen uoyisues | uojsued peziuboaaiun uisebueys 0011

souejeg Amger] usbuguo) i sebueyd 09011
asuefeg aauasqy pajesuadwon ulsabueyn psoLL

0% BYE'L06'LS LEL'BIL'LS Z19'0vLS SI0UT O UORIILO PUB Siajsuel ) Anb3 ‘sjuswisnipy pouad Jold DPOLL
Lis'vons 0s §68'€95 0§ ZH9'08LS [ Ainb3 BuuiBisg 0COL
0§ 0§ o8 0% [ 0 0s sjuawhed [edisuld 1q3Q [enuuy paanbay 0ZoLk
Ls¥'oRlS 0s 960'LLES BE9'96LS 0% 0§ [ sesuadid [gjo 1 (12pun) JaA0 anURA3Y I L jo (AauenyaQ) ss2x3 QODOL
0% os 0% 0§ 05 s 0s {s9sn) seanog Bupueuy J3yo [BI0L 00101

INQ - weiBoid pue Pefoid usamieq siajsues] PED0L

] - 13301 pue weiboid usamiaq si3jsuel) £E00L

INQ Jajsuel ) yseD $539x3 193001d SN ZE00L

uf Jajsuel ] yseD sseaxd jaefold Jald L600L

(ssoyuies 1aN) sway [epads 0gO0L

ssoues 1aN 'swaj| Aleupioex3 0001

safes Auadoid woly spaazoid 09004

‘Spuog pue SUE0T 'S3jON Way SPIIT0I4 05001

Jun uauodwoy ooy s1ajsuel | Bugessdo or00L
UsUWADD Alewld ojauoy siajsuel | Bugeiedd QE0D

0§ 0§ nQ sejsuen Bugesado 0Zo0M
4 Jajsues ) Bugesado 0LODL

B6V'SEZ'YS £Z1'90L'LS" +06'E6Z 1% SEE'SLOPS 98E'268 08 s sesuadeg [ejo L 00006

asuadc3 juay syun Bugamg o0als
SpUNJ [ejUaWUIaACY - JUsWAR [ediuyd 1930 00LL6

spunj [ejuswwaneg - sAepnQ [ended 00926
535507 Py 005L6

vae'i6s ELL'OGS LS osuadxg uogepaidaq QOFLG
ul-Ayliaedod dvH DSELE
766'985°28 LZHe0N L 6H1'569'ES sjuswley asusissy BUISNOH DOE/6

pazjeydes-uoy - 535507 Aensed 00ZL6
aaveus|UEY ABUDICENXT 00LLE

EEE'LOQ'ZS LZL'901' 15~ §0Z'29¢S 15Z'005'ES 0% [ 08 sasuadxg Bugesadg Jaso anuaray bugesadg jo $522x3 000L6
ssod
SI3YaNoA 32104D | Japun Aouapiyng papusjg
el W Fomamd Sxalinng | GuisnoH L2g'kl  i-Hes Aueg Buisnoy  aun Jusuodwo) 79 FiaL pafoid
nand L26°F)
YZOZIOE/G0 PUT JeaA [B9s1d Arewwnsg asuadx3 pue anuaaay apim A1ug PNy sjbuIS/palipny (adA | UoisSIIGNS

FN ‘NOLNOOS]

(zsorN) Awoyiny Buisnoy ucjucog



